
Meeting of:  Middleton Township
Date: Thursday, 13th June, 2019
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Junction Library and Community Centre, 

Grimshaw Lane, Middleton, M24 2AA

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  OPEN FORUM 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise any 
issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the Township.

 

6.  MINUTES - MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE 3 - 8

Public Document Pack



To consider the Minutes of the meeting of the Middleton Township 
Committee held on 14th March 2019. 

7.  NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING – DESIGNATION OF THE 
PROPOSED THORNHAM ST. JOHN'S NEIGHBOURHOOD AREA 
AND FORUM 

9 - 13

To consider the proposed designation of a Neighbourhood Area and a 
Neighbourhood Forum for Thornham St. John's.  

8.  OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER - EVESHAM 
ROAD, WALSINGHAM AVENUE, TENBURY DRIVE AND HANLEY 
CLOSE, MIDDLETON 

14 - 25

To consider a proposed Traffic Regulation Order at Evesham Road, 
Walsingham Avenue, Tenbury Drive and Hanley Close, Middleton. 

9.  MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REVIEW 26 - 54

To consider the revenue and capital expenditure of Township Funds 
during 2018/19 and options for the allocation of funds in 2019/20. 

10.  MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS AND 
APPOINTMENTS 2019-2020 

55 - 60

To consider Middleton Township Delegation Arrangements and 
Appointments for 2019/20. 

Middleton Township Members
Councillor Malcolm Boriss Councillor Phil Burke
Councillor Patricia Mary Dale Councillor Neil Emmott
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Donna Martin E Councillor Kallum Nolan
Councillor Linda Robinson Councillor Sara Rowbotham
Councillor Susan Smith Councillor Carol Wardle
Councillor June West Councillor Donna Williams
Councillor Peter Williams

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Alison James – Governance and Committee Services

Telephone: 01706 924711
E-mail: alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk 



MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday 14th March 2019

PRESENT:  Councillor Donna Williams (Chair); Councillors Boriss, Dale, 
Neil Emmott, Susan Emmott, Joinson, Martin, Nolan, Rowbotham, Smith, 
Wardle, West and Peter Williams

OFFICERS:  I. Trickett, A. Webster and L. Mason (Neighbourhoods 
Directorate), F. Davies (Children’s Services Directorate) and A. James 
(Resources Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  Inspector P. Wood (Greater Manchester Police), 
C. Murphy (Metro Moneywise Credit Union) and three members of the public

APOLOGIES
86 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Burke and 
Councillor Robinson.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
87 There were no declarations of interest.

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
88 The Chair advised of the following urgent items of business:-

a) Councillor Robinson had asked that it be brought to the attention of the 
Committee of the help that residents in Alkrington had provided to a 
homeless person and asked that they be thanked for their assistance;

b) There was an update on the Neighbourhood Plan that had been 
considered at the last meeting of the Committee in that the Committee 
were now being asked to note that following advice from the Council’s 
Planning Solicitor, in relation to Minute 82, Page 14 of the Agenda and 
the application for a Neighbourhood Plan, that the proposed plan would 
go out to consultation as originally submitted and that the concerns 
expressed by the Committee at the last meeting would form a 
submission to that process;

ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
89 There were no items for the exclusion of the public and press.

OPEN FORUM
90 The following matter was raised as part of the Open Forum:-

a) Long Street/Wood Street

Mr D Lappin referred to the matter of cars contravening the one way system at 
Wood Street/Long Street and taxis parked on Burton Street.

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



Inspector Wood informed the Committee that an operation had been 
undertaken in this area but limited resources prevented a constant presence.

It was suggested that joint operations between the Police and enforcement 
officers may be of some benefit.

METRO MONEYWISE CREDIT UNION
91 The Committee received a presentation from a representative of Metro 
Moneywise, Ms. C. Murphy, on Metro Moneywise including its association 
with Rochdale Borough Council, outlining its benefits and key services.

Resolved:

The work of the Metro Moneywise Credit Union be commended by the 
Committee and the presentation be noted and welcomed.

MINUTES - MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE
92 Resolved:

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Middleton Township Committee held 
on 11th October 2018 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct 
record.

MINUTES - MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP DEVOLVED FUNDING AND 
DEVOLVED SERVICES SUB COMMITTEE
93 Resolved:
That the minutes of the meeting of Middleton Township Devolved Funding and 
Devolved Services Sub-Committee held on 13th February 2019 be noted.

OBJECTIONS TO TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER - LODGE STREET, 
BOARSHAW ROAD AND MORTON STREET, MIDDLETON
94 The Township Committee considered the report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which had advised that there had been a request from the 
Township to investigate the introduction of parking restrictions at Lodge 
Street, Middleton. Members of the public had reported issues of obstructive 
parking at Lodge Street / Boarshaw Road in the vicinity of Morton Street. It 
was reported that parking occurred near to the junction and on both sides of 
the main road and that this interfered with the flow of two-way traffic and 
affected visibility at the junction.

New parking restrictions were drafted and approved by ward members. The 
restrictions were formally promoted and during the consultation period the 
Council received one letter of objection to the proposal.

The objector reported that the restrictions would unnecessarily reduce the 
number of available on-street parking spaces for customers.

The report outlined the reasons for the proposal, the objections received and 
a response to the objections.

Page 4



In considering the submitted report, the Chair invited the objectors to address 
the Committee.

Resolved:
In light of the matters raised by the objectors at the meeting relating to the 
usage of the bus stop adjacent to the businesses on Lodge Street that 
consideration of the proposed traffic regulation order be deferred to enable 
further investigations to take place.

Eligible for call in – no 

THE NEED FOR EXTRA PRIMARY SCHOOL PLACES 2019 - 2023
95 The Township Committee was consulted on a report of the Director of 
Children’s Services which advised that there was a need to keep under review 
the need for extra class places in each of the Borough’s Townships. The 
purpose of the report was to set out proposals to address the need for extra 
Reception Year places. Pupil place planning sought to ensure that the 
Townships were kept aware of school spaces and pupil numbers within their 
area and to aid local government decision making.

Resolved:

That the report be noted.

Reasons for the recommendations:

The Council has a statutory duty to provide education and school places to all 
school aged children living in the borough and consequently has a duty to 
plan adequately for predicted pupil numbers.

Eligible for Call-in: No

THE NEED FOR EXTRA YEAR 7 SCHOOL PLACES 2019-2028
96 The Township Committee were consulted on a report of the Director of 
Children’s Services which outlined strategies for managing the predicted 
shortfall in year 7 places for the intake years of 2019 and 2020. Appropriate 
staff in Children’s Services were working to aid the Department for Education 
and any successful academy to open a new school in the Borough for 
September 2021 for future places that are needed.

The Council’s Schools Organisation and Planning Team were currently in 
discussions with schools about any additional places offered for September 
2019. It was anticipated that the numbers of additional places would change 
from those presented in the submitted report for ‘own admission’ authority 
schools. The government had made an announcement to say they were going 
to fund all special school applications that “meet the criteria”. Rochdale 
Council has submitted an expression of interest to have a new secondary 
special school specializing in Autism and Communications special needs. The 
Committee was asked to note the plans for extra capacity for September 
2020. 

Page 5



Resolved:

That the report be noted.

Reasons for the recommendation;

Since 2005 the number of pupils in schools has been rising steadily. Extra 
capacity has been created in both the Primary and Secondary school estates. 
11 of the 12 secondary schools in the Borough have had building expansions 
or taken numbers over their Pupil Admission Number. Two schools are 
currently undergoing building works but have already raised their Published 
Admission Number to take extra children. No further secondary school 
expansions are in the pipeline and two new schools are required to be built in 
the Borough; one in the north Pennines and one in Middleton.

MIDDLETON NEW ALLOTMENT PROVISION
97 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which advised that across the Borough there were currently 
524 allotment plots which was not considered to be not enough to meet 
current demand. As at 25th February 2019 there were 985 people on the 
waiting list for an allotment in the Borough, more than quadruple the figure in 
2015.  Allotment plots were presently allocated at the rate of 30 plots per year 
through natural turnover and, on average, the Council received 160 new 
applications for allotments year on year.  The waiting time had therefore 
increased significantly from seven years in 2015 years ago to a potential 33 
years if the demand was to remain at its present level.  

The Council’s Environmental Management Service had been tasked with 
creating 100 new plots a year, every year, for the next five years.  This had 
been approved by the Cabinet with provisionally allocated Capital funding to 
enable delivery. Each Township had been asked to identify viable sites within 
their boundaries. The Environmental Management Service had been working 
with the Council’s Planning and Estates services to create a list of potential 
sites.

The Committee were being asked to approve that formal consultation be held 
regarding the potential use of the following sites for new allotment provision:

1. North of Croftgates Road, Rhodes;
2. Part of Clough Road / Brassey Street recreation ground;
3. Part of Mount Road / Penrhyn open space;

Alternatives considered:

A variety of sites across the Township had already been considered and 
declined at the shortlisting stage by officers for technical reasons. In addition 
Members were invited to nominate additional sites for technical testing to see 
if they were viable options.

Page 6



Resolved:

1.  The Committee approves that the following sites be approved, for 
consultative purposes, as potential sites for allocation for new allotment 
provision in Middleton Township: North of Croftgates Road, Rhodes; Part of 
Clough Road / Brassey Street recreation ground; Part of Mount Road / 
Penrhyn open space;

2.     Members of the Committee be requested to liaise with appropriate 
officers in the Council’s Environmental Management Service regarding areas 
for potential use as allotment sites, in their Wards.

 Reasons for the decision:

The recommendations in the report would enable the Council to work towards 
meeting recommendations of Government standards on how many allotment 
plots should be provided and would also enable the Council’s Environmental 
Management Service to make progress towards its target of achieving an 
additional 500 allotment plots across the Borough.

Eligible for call-in: Yes

MIDDLETON GRASS VERGE MAINTENANCE
98 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which examined proposals for cutting grass verges across 
the Township. The proposals outlined in the report were intended to: deliver 
cost savings, develop a suitable habitat for wildlife; improve the appearance of 
the Township; minimise the need to mow; enable the trialling of new models 
for how verges are to be maintained; deliver floral verges in the summer 
months; and to retain a neat finish in the winter months after flowers have 
faded. The appendix to the report detailed a series of locations across the 
Borough where the proposed grass cutting could occur.

As part of the process to implement the programme, the Director of 
Neighbourhoods reported upon the intended use of a growth retardant 
chemical to slow the rate of grass growth and therefore reduce the frequency 
of mowing.  This would mainly be used on verges where Traffic Management 
Orders were required. Members expressed their concern at the proposed use 
of the growth retardant chemicals.

In considering the report, South Ward Councillors requested that two 
roundabouts being put forward in that Ward be replaced by a scheme on 
Mainway.

Members were also informed of the importance of butterflies, bees and other 
insects and wildlife which would be promoted by the increased use of 
wildflower areas.

Alternatives considered:

Page 7



To cease mowing entirely: this option not to be pursued except for 
rural/informal areas where that method will not look out of place.

Resolved:

1.      The Township Committee approves the shortlist of sites detailed in the 
appendix to the report (subject to a site meeting relating to the South Ward 
schemes) in the appended document, for the grass verge management 
scheme, on the condition that the growth retardant chemicals are not used.

Reasons for the decision:

To enable the Council’s Environmental Management Services to improve the 
quality of grass verges in terms of floral features, wildlife habitat value and to 
reduce pollution whilst delivering budget savings.

Eligible for Call-in: Yes 
 

Page 8



Report to Rochdale South Township Committee & Middleton Township Committee

Date of Meeting 05 June 2019
13 June 2019

Portfolio Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Development & 
Housing

Report Author Paul Moore

Public/Private Document Public

Neighbourhood Planning – Designation of the proposed Thornham 
St. John's Neighbourhood Area and Forum

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

To inform Members that consultation has taken place on the applications for 
the designation of a Neighbourhood Area and a Neighbourhood Forum for 
Thornham St. John's.  

To seek Township approval to designate the Thornham St. John's 
Neighbourhood Area and Forum to support future preparation of the 
Thornham St. John's Neighbourhood Plan.

Recommendation

2.1

2.2

That Township Committee approves the Thornham St. John's Neighbourhood 
Area and Forum for designation.

If approved, the area and forum designation should be publicised on the 
Council’s website as soon as possible.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 required that 
provided the Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Area and Forum 
applications meet the requirements as set out in Sections 61F to 61L of the 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Parts 2 and 3 of the Regulations, 
then the Council must publicise the applications for 6 weeks.

These Regulations require that the Neighbourhood Area and Neighbourhood 
Forum must, inter alia: have a constitution; at least 21 members representative 
of the area and no part of the proposed Neighbourhood Area may overlap with 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



any other designated Neighbourhood Area.

It is considered that the Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Area and Forum 
applications satisfies the requirements of the Regulations, and as no 
objections were received, the recommendation is to designate Thornham St. 
John’s as a Neighbourhood Area and Forum.

The application of a neighbourhood Area and Forum will enable the 
community to begin the preparation of a Neighbourhood Plan for their area.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

Background

Neighbourhood Planning Overview
Neighbourhood planning is a community led process intended to shape and 
promote development at the neighbourhood (i.e. local) level.

It was introduced through the Localism Act (2011) to enable communities to 
define Neighbourhood Areas and establish Neighbourhood Forums to draw up 
a Neighbourhood Plan. It is guided by a range of legislation and national 
guidance. LPAs are required by law to support the neighbourhood planning 
process.

Neighbourhood Areas and Forums
A neighbourhood area is proposed by a prospective neighbourhood forum and 
designated by the LPA. This is the boundary for the area over which the 
neighbourhood forum is responsible. It will also form the boundary of the area 
in relation to which a neighbourhood development plan can be brought 
forward. Neighbourhood areas can cover areas across LPA boundaries and 
can be any shape or size. Only one neighbourhood area can cover one 
location.

Neighbourhood forums are community-led groups which seek to help shape 
growth and development within their relevant neighbourhood areas. Groups 
must apply to their LPA to be designated as a neighbourhood forum. Once 
designated, a neighbourhood forum can develop a neighbourhood plan for its 
neighbourhood area. As the LPA for its area, we have a statutory duty to 
determine applications to designate neighbourhood forums.

Once designated, a forum ceases to have effect after 5 years. 

Consultation undertaken
The application for designation as a Neighbourhood Area and a 
Neighbourhood Forum was publicised for a 6 week public consultation period 
from the 25th March until 6 May 2019.

In total, the number of response’s for each of the following were:
 Neighbourhood Area – 24 supporting the application
 Neighbourhood Forum -  19 supporting the application

Page 10



There were no objections received to the consultation on the proposed 
neighbourhood area and forum applications.  All the responses were 
supportive of the proposed neighbourhood area and neighbourhood forum.  

It is officers view that the Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Area and 
Forum applications satisfies the requirements of the Regulations, and as 
no objections were received, the recommendation is to designate 
Thornham St. John’s as a Neighbourhood Area and Forum.

Next Steps
If it is deemed appropriate to designate the proposed neighbourhood area and 
forum for a prospective Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Development 
Plan, then the designation will be publicised on the Council’s website to make 
residents, businesses and other interested parties aware of it.  Thereafter, the 
process of preparing the neighbourhood plan can begin.  This stage includes 
consultation with residents and businesses within the plan area, and areas 
that may be affected by the plan.

Alternatives Considered
The Neighbourhood Planning (General) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 
prescribe time limits for the determination of a neighbourhood area 
application. Except where a local planning authority is required to designate 
the whole of a parish, applications must be determined within 13 weeks of first 
being publicised, or 20 weeks where the application relates to more than one 
local planning authority area. If these time limits are not met, the local 
planning authority must designate all of the area applied for.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no specific financial implications arising from the recommendations 
within this report or for the Council’s involvement in the process at this stage.  
Going forward, the costs to the Council will depend on the nature and scale of 
help and support provided and the ability of community groups to contribute 
financially to the process or obtain further funding to support the plan 
preparation.  The duty to support does not require the Council to give financial 
assistance to a designated neighbourhood forum unless it chooses to do so.  
Funding is available to authorities to cover the costs of the independent check 
and referendum.   It is not possible to provide an authoritative estimate of the 
total costs involved in preparing a plan.  However, if the Council decides to 
provide financial assistance then a separate report will be provided to agree to 
this.

Risk and Policy Implications

6. All the issues raised and the recommendation(s) in this report involve risk 
considerations as set out below:

• Local communities will be required to show that they are able to 
accommodate requirements for growth and development in their areas in 
accordance with the Local Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
If they simply seek to prevent development, current Guidance indicates the 

Page 11



Plan will not succeed at an independent examination.
• Resourcing neighbourhood planning forums and neighbourhood 
planning areas is likely to be an issue faced by communities and authorities.  
It is noted and would be expected that much of the work and resource is 
expected to be undertaken by the designated neighbourhood forum.

Consultation

7. If the applications for Neighbourhood Area and Forum are approved, the 
Council intends to publicise the two applications between 19th June and 31st 
July 2018.

During this time the application and supporting information will be published 
on the Council’s website, and paper copies of the documents will be 
available in Rochdale Library, Castleton and Middleton Library.  Stakeholders 
on the Council’s planning policy database will be notified by letter or email.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Sohida Banu – 
Sohida.Banu@Rochdale.Gov.uk
Paul Moore

Paul.Moore@Rochdale.Gov.UK

Page 12



Appendix 1 – Map of Thornham St. John’s Neighbourhood Plan Area

Page 13



Report to Middleton Township Committee

Date of Meeting 13th June 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Environment
Report Author Carl Needham
Public/Private Document Public

Report of objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Evesham Road, 
Walsingham Avenue, Tenbury Drive and Hanley Close, Middleton

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

A request was received from Middleton Township for the Council to 
investigate the introduction of parking restrictions along Evesham Road, 
Walsingham Avenue, Tenbury Drive and Hanley Close, Middleton.
It was reported that vehicles park on both sides of the road at certain 
points, which obstructs the passage of vehicles. The main problems occur 
Walsingham Avenue where residents have reported access issues. In 
addition to creating vehicular access problems, vehicles double parked 
often obstruct the footway for pedestrians.

In addition to treating Walsingham Avenue, restrictions are proposed on 
both sides of Evesham Road and at the junctions of Tenbury Drive, 
Walsingham Avenue and Hanley Close to ensure free vehicular 
movements and sight lines around the junctions.

New parking restrictions were drafted and approved by ward members. 
The restrictions were formally promoted and during the consultation period 
the Authority received 3 letters of objection to the proposal plus a petition 
signed by residents of Tenbury Drive and Walsingham Avenue. Late 
representations have been included in this instance.

In general, the objectors report that the restrictions will unnecessarily 
reduce the number of available on-street parking spaces for residents and 
visitors during the proposed daytime hours.

The report outlines the reason for the proposal, the objections received 
and a response to the objections.

Page 14

Agenda Item 8



Recommendation

2. The Committee should consider whether the proposed Traffic Regulation 
Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Middleton Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.63) 
Order be implemented as advertised, be amended, or be abandoned in 
light of the representations received, which are outlined in Appendix B of 
this report. It is the recommendation of Officers that the objections be 
dismissed and the proposal introduced as advertised.

Reason for Recommendation

3. Copy of Statement of Reasons

The streets surrounding St Thomas More RC Primary School often suffer from motorists 
indiscriminately parking their vehicles when visiting the school or to drop off / pick up 
children from the school.  Vehicles are often parked obstructing driveways and access to 
and from properties.  Highways have received complaints from residents resulting in 
Middleton Township commissioning the introduction of additional waiting restrictions.

There are two existing ‘school keep clear’ markings already in place on Evesham Road 
which each measure 43.56 metres.
The junction of Boardman Fold Road and Evesham Road has existing No Waiting at Any 
Time junction protection.

Furthermore the streets surrounding the school namely Walsingham Avenue, Tenbury 
Drive and Hanley Close are very narrow and can easily become obstructed by 
indiscriminately parked vehicles.

It is imperative to make the roads surrounding the school safe as possible for school 
children, their parents/guardians and other pedestrians, by introducing additional waiting 
restrictions. It is important to keep this area clear of parked vehicles so as not to obstruct 
the view of oncoming drivers of the pedestrians exiting the school and crossing the road.

The Proposals

It is proposed to introduce No Waiting at Any Time restrictions on:

 The south side of Evesham Road for 10 metres either side of its junction with 
Walsingham Avenue.

 The north side of Evesham Road for 10 metres either side of its junction with 
Hanley Close.

 The west side of Walsingham Avenue for 10 metres either side of its junction with 
Tenbury Drive.

 Both sides of Walsingham Avenue from its junction with Evesham Road for a 
distance of 10 metres in a southerly direction.

 Both sides of Tenbury Drive from its junction with Walsingham Avenue for a 
distance of 10 metres in a westerly direction.

 Both side of Hanley Close from its junction with Evesham Road for a distance of 10 
metres in a northerly direction.

And to introduce No Waiting Mon-Fri 8am-5pm restrictions on:

Page 15



 The north side of Evesham Road from a point 10 metres east of its junction with 
Boardman Fold Road to a point 10 metres west of its junction with Hanley Close.

 The south side of Evesham Road from a point 10 metres east of its junction with 
Boardman Fold Road to a point 10 metres west of its junction with Walsingham 
Avenue

 the south side of Evesham Road from a point 10 metres east of its junction with 
Walsingham Avenue to a point 30 metres east of its junction with Walsingham 
Avenue.

 the south side of Evesham Road from a point 117.12 metres east of its junction 
with Walsingham Avenue for a distance of 33 metres in an easterly direction.

 The west side of Walsingham Avenue from a point 10 metres south of its junction 
with Evesham Road to a point 10 metres north of its junction with Tenbury Drive.

 The east side of Walsingham Avenue from a point 10 metres south of its junction 
with Evesham Road to a point 10 metres south of a point opposite the southerly 
kerb line of Tenbury Drive.

The introduction of the above restrictions will prevent obstructive parking and increase 
forward visibility promoting a more efficient and safer highway for all highway users.

3.2 To address the issues reported, it is necessary to introduce the proposed 
Order as originally advertised (see Appendix A).

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

During the consultation period the Authority received 3 objection letters.

To comply with the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 1996 the Authority must consider all objections 
submitted during the consultation period of 21 days before ‘Making’ a 
Traffic Regulation Order.

It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Order is 
deemed non-strategic in nature and should be dealt with in accordance 
with Section 8.2-3 of the Scheme of Delegation to Township Committee. 
Committee has delegated power to confirm or abandon the proposals and 
the Order.

In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the 
only right the general public has on the highway is a right of passage 
along it. The Council, acting in its capacity as Highway Authority, have a 
duty of care to ensure the safety of the travelling public and a duty under 
the Traffic Management Act 2004 to maintain the expeditious movement 
of traffic.

The Objectors’ comments and the Director of Neighbourhoods response
are attached at Appendix B and C of this report.

Page 16



4.5

4.6

Alternatives Considered

The Committee could consider recommending that the proposal be 
amended by reducing or removing some or all of the Single Yellow Line 
Restrictions or the entire proposal abandoned.

Should Committee decide not to introduce the restrictions proposed then 
the issues with parked vehicles, which were reported to Middleton 
Township, will not be addressed.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. The cost of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order will be met by Middleton 
Township Fund. The estimated cost is £4000.

Risk and Policy Implications

The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate 
safely and efficiently, for all traffic including pedestrians.

6.

Consultation

7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, (Procedure) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 1996 has taken place.

The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, The Freight 
Transport Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted 
on 17th December 2018.

Notices of intention were posted on site and published in the local 
newspaper on 20th December 2018.

The objection period ran until 20th January 2019.

Background Papers Place of Inspection
None

Page 17



APPENDIX  A – Notice of Intention and plan

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE
((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)

(VARIOUS STREETS) (MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)
(AMENDMENT) (NO. 63) ORDER

Evesham Road, Walsingham Avenue, Tenbury Drive and Hanley Close, 
Middleton

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of 
its powers under Sections 1(1),, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984, intend to make an Order, the effect of which would be to amend the 
Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various 
Streets) (Middleton Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:-

Schedule 1.1, No Waiting At Any Time

Evesham Road, South Middleton Ward
n (i) the south side from its junction with Walsingham Avenue to a 

point 10 metres west of its junction with Walsingham Avenue.
n (ii) the south side from its junction with Walsingham Avenue to a 

point 10 metres east of its junction with Walsingham Avenue.
n (iii) the north side from its junction with Hanley Close to a point 10 

metres west of its junction with Hanley Close.
n (iv) the north side from its junction with Hanley Close to a point 10 

metres east of its junction with Hanley Close.

Hanley Close, South Middleton Ward
n (i) both sides from its junction with Evesham Road to a point 10 

metres north of its junction with Evesham Road.

Walsingham Avenue, South Middleton Ward
n (i) both sides from its junction with Evesham Road to a point 10 

metres south of its junction with Evesham Road.
n (ii) the west side from its junction with Tenbury Drive to a point 10 

metres north of its junction with Tenbury Drive.
n (iii) the west side from its junction with Tenbury Drive to a point 10 

metres south of its junction with Tenbury Drive.

Tenbury Drive, South Middleton Ward
n (i) both sides from its junction with Walsingham Avenue to a point 

10 metres west of its junction with Walsingham Avenue.

Schedule 2.3, No Waiting Mon – Fri 8am-5pm

Evesham Road, South Middleton Ward
n (i) the south side from a point 10 metres east of its junction with 

Boardman Fold Road to a point 10 metres west of its junction 

Page 18



with Walsingham Avenue.
n (ii) the south side from a point 10 metres east of its junction with 

Walsingham Avenue to a point 30 metres east of its junction with 
Walsingham Avenue.

n (iii) the south side from a point 117.12 metres east of its junction 
with Walsingham Avenue for a distance of 33 metres in an 
easterly direction.

n (iv) the north side from a point 10 metres east of its junction with 
Boardman Fold Road to a point 10 metres west of its junction 
with Hanley Close

Walsingham Avenue, South Middleton Ward
n (i) the west side from a point 10 metres south of its junction with 

Evesham Road to a point 10 metres north of its junction with 
Tenbury Drive.

n (ii) the east side from a point 10 metres south of its junction with 
Evesham Road to a point 10 metres south of a point opposite the 
southerly kerb line of Tenbury Drive.

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the lengths of roads 
concerned, together with the Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the 
Order, may be inspected at Customer Services Centre, Middleton Library, Long 
Street, Middleton M24 6DU during normal office hours or viewed on the 
Council’s website www.rochdale.gov.uk/roads, or by phoning Highways on 
0300 303 8879.

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are 
made, must be made in writing and forwarded to 
trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to Network Management, Floor 
2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU to reach the 
Council on or before 10th January 2019, quoting H60/1293

Dated this 20th day of December 2018

David Wilcock
Assistant Director

Legal, Governance & Workforce
Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 19

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/roads


Page 20



APPENDIX  B – Objections

Objection 1 (Representation / Comment – received by email 22/12/18)

Dear Sirs,

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE ((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS) (VARIOUS 
STREETS) (MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008) (AMENDMENT) (NO. 63) ORDER

Evesham Road, Walsingham Avenue, Tenbury Drive and Hanley Close, Middleton

Please would you consider that implementing these proposals would simply push the parking 
issues into the already congested neighbouring roads outside St Michael’s School on Boardman 
Fold Road. As a Resident near St Michael, my dropped kern drive is regularly blocked by 
inconsiderate parents of St Michael’s Students, who park across the drive blocking access to my 
own drive. Often when asked to move their vehicles, I’m met with verbal abuse in reply. 

PLEASE consider extending the proposed parking regulations to including the area around St 
Michaels School on Boardman Fold Road so that all the issue isn’t just moved to a different area. 
The Roads that should also be considered are – Boardman Fold Road, Evesham Gardens and 
Malvern Road.

Objection 2 (received by email 10/1/19)

TRO Ref No H60/1293

Schedule 2.3 No waiting Monday to Friday 8am to 5pm.

Evesham Road South Middleton Ward N (iv) the north side from a point 10 meters east of its 
junction with Boardman Fold Road to a point 10 meters west of Hanley Close

We refer to the proposed parking restrictions and in particular those affecting the north side of 
Evesham Road and wish to register our objection.

We are of the opinion that these proposals are very much to the detriment of the residents as it 
would restrict people visiting us from 8am to 5pm Monday to Friday. This proposal, if adopted, 
would mean that visitors such as medical professionals, a mobile hairdresser, the fish seller, 
people who deliver goods ordered on line, workmen and family and friends who need to come to 
the house would not be able to park outside our property. It would also mean that when 
Christmas Day, Boxing Day and New Year’s Day fall on a weekday visitors would not be able to 
park outside our houses.

The school, St Thomas Moore’s, has two car parks. The car park adjacent to the school buildings is 
used by the teaching staff. There is another car park further down the road which often has 
several empty spaces, but other people who go to the school often park in the road. Many 

Page 21



problems would be solved if people who had the authority to use the school car parks used them.

A residents’ parking scheme would resolve the problem.

A no waiting restriction would mean that vehicles should not stop to pick up or deposit anyone.  
We fail to understand how this is going to be policed.

The proposed restriction of waiting would unfairly restrict the residents’ use of the road when 
there are other ways that would lead to a safer environment.

Objection 3 (received by email 20/1/19)

Dear Sir, I have just been advised of the highways proposal to add single yellow lines along the 
first few houses on Walsingham Avenue. I would like to object to this proposal in the strongest 
possible way.
Whilst I am aware that the date for objections has passed I would still like my objection to be 
noted and for this proposal to be rejected immediately.
I cannot stress the importance of not proceeding with this proposed change strongly enough.
Such a change will cause a significant disruption to my day to day life, the prospect of not being 
able to park outside my own house or for visitors to my house not to be able to park outside my 
house during the day will effect my work and social life.
Access to parking outside my house Monday to Friday is necessary for me to be able to carry out 
my job effectively.
A petition against this change has been raised and I have signed it along with many of my 
neighbours.

I would also like to object to the way this proposed change has been handled and communicated.
The document strapped around a lamppost is a most ridiculous way to communicate such a 
change to someone who does not regularly walk around the local area of who has poor eyesight 
and cannot read such text. 
It feels very much like a very limited attempt has been made to communicate this change to local 
residents in the hope that this will reduce the objections received.
Why was I not consulted with directly of such a change, in this day and age do we really think that 
a note strapped to a lamppost is the most effective way we can think of to share an important 
communication.

Please take note of all the points listed above and ensure that these are noted in any review of 
the proposal.
Please also ensure that confirmation of receipt of this email is provided by return email.
Please also confirm when this objections will be reviewed and a decision to cancel this 
proposal made.

Page 22



Objection 4 (received by email 21/1/19)

Dear Sir/Madam
 
I am aware the objection period (10/1/19) for the above proposal Schedule 2.3 No waiting Mon-
Fri 08:00-17:00 Walsingham Avenue Middleton Ward (H60/1293) n(i) and n(ii). Schedule 1.1 No 
waiting at Any Time Walsingham Ave n(ii), n(iii) and Tenbury Drive n(i)..has now passed but these 
are the main reasons for the late objection.
 
The notice was not displayed on the lamp post (No. 2) outside of my property, between number 3 
and 5 Walsingham Avenue. As these residences will be affected by the changes surely the notice 
should have been in place here.
 
The nearest notification was on lamp posts No. 1 on Tenbury Drive and Walsingham Avenue. The 
properties at these points are not facing towards the road. As the signage was not clear residents 
did not spot these notices until the objection deadline had passed.
 
Usually, when there are any planning applications under consideration, e.g. St Thomas More 
school, we receive a letter to raise (if we have any) objections. I would have expected this to be 
the case in this instance. 
 
For personal reasons I bought the house when the estate was built (25 years ago). At the time I 
was aware that it was situated between the two local schools (St Thomas More and St Michaels). I 
don’t find any inconvenience with parents parking outside my property (number 5) when they are 
dropping their children off in the morning and picking them up later in the afternoon. Walsingham 
Avenue is wide enough for cars to pass through safely when others are parked up.
 
I have a single width drive which holds both of our cars. In order to get the one of the cars off the 
drive we have park the second on the road. If the restriction comes into force this will mean that 
at some point in the day one car will be illegally parked.
 
Also I have elderly parents who frequently visit and have no choice but to park on the road 
outside my house. They have mobility problems so if they are unable to park here in the future 
this will affect them too.
 
The proposed parking restrictions will only move any perceived problem further down 
Walsingham Avenue and Tenbury Drive. 
 
I have canvassed the local residents who all agree with my thoughts on this matter and have 
signed a petition to this effect. They all agreed that the no waiting at any time at the junction of 
Walsingham Ave and Evesham Road is a good idea for the safety of the children crossing to and 
from school. 
 
I feel that there are no safety issues on the proposals I am objecting against. 
 
I contacted your department who explained that one objection had been sent in and that the 
planning committee was going to review the application. She advised me to send this e-mail (even 
though the objection date had passed) in order that my comments could be put before the 
reviewing panel.

Page 23



Petition included with objection 4

A petition with 34 signatures was included with the objection.

APPENDIX C – Response to Objections

The Council followed the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 1996 when advertising this proposal. The Council do not 
letter drop residents whom may be affected by a proposal as there may be 
supporters of the scheme whom would not be afforded the same opportunity to 
make representations. Supporters of a scheme may be regular users of the 
highway and not necessarily local residents. Further to this, it is not always clear 
which residents may be affected or not, which can lead to further claims of 
inconsistency in the way in which the Council advertises a TRO which could lead 
to a challenge in the High Court. 

Notices were posted on multiple lamp columns and were made conspicuous. The 
notices provide details of the proposals as well as locations and contact 
information so that members of the public can view the proposals in more detail.

Evesham Road is one of the main access routes to St Thomas More and St 
Michael’s schools, it is therefore important to maintain sufficient width for 2 way 
traffic at peak times, this can only be achieved by prohibiting parking on both sides 
of the carriageway at locations close to schools.  Without restrictions, motorists 
tend to park partly on the footway to avoid obstructing the carriageway, this then 
causes a hazard to pedestrians.

The proposed Single Yellow Line restrictions on the north side of Evesham Road 
opposite St Thomas More school will ensure a safer crossing point for pupils, by 
ensuring sightlines are kept clear. Although residents may be affected by a 
proposal in terms of their parking arrangements, it should also be borne in mind 
that the only right the general public has on the highway is the right of passage 
along it. The Council is not responsible for creating or maintaining on-street 
parking places for residents. The Council, acting in its capacity as Highway 
Authority, have a duty of care to ensure the safety of the travelling public and to 
maintain the expeditious movement of traffic.  However, the main focus of the 
scheme is to improve the safety for users of the highway in particular for 
pedestrians heading to and from the nearby schools.

It should be noted that disabled badge holders can park on prohibition of waiting 
restrictions for up to 3 hours. It is also permitted to stop on prohibition of waiting 
restrictions to board and alight vehicles and to load or unload.
In conclusion, the restrictions proposed are considered to be the minimum length 
necessary to solve the problem reported.

The operational times of the proposed restrictions reflect the operational times of 
the existing school zig-zags and the school operating times.

A separate scheme would have to be commissioned by Middleton Township 
members to introduce similar restrictions on Boardman Fold Road, Evesham 
Gardens and Malvern Road.

Page 24



For Further Information Contact: Carl Needham, Tel: 01706 924579, 
carl.needham@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 25



Report to Middleton Township Committee

Date of Meeting 13 June 2019
Portfolio Neighbourhoods, 

Community & Culture
Report Author Sharron Worrall
Public/Private Document Public Document

Middleton Township Funds Review

1. Executive Summary

1.1 This report reviews the revenue and capital expenditure during 2018/19 and 
provides options for the allocation of funds in 2019/20.

1.2 Members are asked to approve Middleton Township Funds terms and 
conditions, and agree delegation arrangements concerning funding decisions.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Middleton 
Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2018/19 (Appendix 1 
and 2).

2.2 Members note the findings of the review of Township Funds 2018/19 
(Appendix 3) and evaluations received to date for some of the projects funded 
(Appendix 4).

2.3 Members approve the allocation of Middleton Township Funds to funding 
streams in 2019/20 as detailed in Appendix 5.

2.4 Members approve the terms and conditions for Middleton Township revenue 
and capital funds for 2019/20 (Appendix 6).

2.5 Members agree to the delegation arrangements for Middleton Township 
Funds 2019/20 as detailed at 4.6 of this report.

3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Management of the Middleton Township Fund is delegated to the Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub Committee.

3.2 Middleton Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

Page 26

Agenda Item 9



3.3 To enable committee to monitor and review the use of the Middleton Township 
Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.

4. Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Middleton 
Township revenue and capital funds 2018/19 (Appendix 1 and 2).  The final 
outturn for financial year 2018/19 as agreed with Accountancy will be reported 
to the next scheduled funding committee.

4.2 A review of Middleton Township revenue and capital funds has been 
undertaken (Appendix 3).  Findings have influenced funding streams 
suggestions, the terms and conditions of the funds and the administration 
procedures for grant applications for 2019/20.

4.3 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township relating to 
identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of 
grants; whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their 
objectives and evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed 
projects funded complied with the terms and conditions of the Middleton 
Township Fund.  Grants awarded and projects funded have made a difference 
to the local community with improvements to local facilities, increased social 
interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.  All successful 
applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that they complete a 
project evaluation form.  Members are asked to note the summaries of 
evaluation information received on projects which have been funded as 
detailed in Appendix 4.

4.4 Township Officers have analysed the findings from the review of Township 
Funds 2018/19 and recommend that Members approve the allocation of 
Township Funds to funding streams in 2019/20 as detailed in Appendix 5.

4.5 Terms and conditions for Middleton Township revenue and capital funds have 
been updated.  Members are asked to approve the terms and conditions for 
2019/20 (Appendix 6).

4.6 Members are asked to agree the delegation arrangements for Middleton 
Township Funds 2019/20 as follows:

a) Townships and Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair and 
Vice Chair of Middleton Township Committee, may make decisions on the 
allocation of funds to all projects for £5,000 and under.  Any disputes 
concerning allocation of funds will be referred to the next Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub Committee for 
decision.

b) Middleton Township Office will refer projects over £5,000 to the next 
Middleton Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub 
Committee for decision.

c) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Middleton 
Township Devolved Funding & Devolved Services Sub Committee to 
ensure all Members are aware of projects that have been approved.

Page 27



4.7 Alternatives Considered

In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the 
allocation of funds to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions.

5. Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Middleton Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2017/18 in 
Appendix 1 and 2.  Recommendations for allocation of Middleton Township 
Funds to funding streams for financial year 2019/20 in Appendix 5.

5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 
of the Middleton Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 
reports will be presented to future committees.

6. Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 No specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report.

6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 
for 2017-19 will be regularly updated to reflect how funds are allocated across 
the Townships in line with the identified priorities.

6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those 
priorities.

7. Consultation

7.1 None

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Sharron Worrall
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924802

Page 28



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2017/18 48,054 65.82% 74.82%

Base Budget 2018/19 92,800 

Income/Adjustments 2018/19 - 

Total budget for 2018/19 140,854 

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 92,712 

Commitments 12,677 

Total Actual + Commitments 105,390 

Budget Remaining 2018/19 35,464 

Forecast Outturn 140,854 

Potential over/underspend - 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2017/18

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments  

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2018/19 

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2018/19

  £ 

North Ward 3,976 5,000      - 8,976         111 874 - 1,220          2,205       6,771 

South Ward 11,259 5,000      - 16,259       - 2,200        - 1,220          3,420       12,839 

East Ward 8,248 5,000      - 13,248       3,500 762 - 2,736          6,998       6,250 

West Ward 1,000 5,000      - 6,000         3,500 (971)          - 2,295          4,824       1,176 

Hopwood Hall Ward 3,028 1,700      - 4,728         - - - 1,220          1,220       3,508 

Events 7,430 35,000    - 42,430       2,413 37,587      - - 40,000     2,430 

Projects 13,113 36,100    - 49,213       3,154 40,870      - 2,700          46,723     2,490 

Total 48,054 92,800    - 140,854     12,677         81,321      - 11,391        105,390   35,464 

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

P
age 29



APPENDIX 2

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL £
 % Actual 

Spend 

 % Actual + 

Committed 

Budget b/f 2017/18 141,558    31.87% 39.54%

Base Budget 2018/19 86,800      

Income/Adjustments 2018/19 (30,380)     

Total budget for 2018/19 197,978    

Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 63,090      

Commitments 15,181      

Total Actual + Commitments 78,271      

Budget Remaining 2018/19 119,707    

Forecast Outturn 197,978    

Potential over/underspend - 

Funds

 Budget

b/f 2017/18

£ 

 Base 

Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Income/ 

Adjustments  

£  

 Revised 

Budget 

2018/19

£ 

 Committed

£ 

 Actuals

£ 

 Virement 

within 

Township 

Funds

£ 

 Virement 

to Services

£ 

 Total

£ 

 Budget 

remaining 

2018/19

  £ 

North Ward 2,020        4,500       - 6,520 - 266 - 4,000 4,266 2,254 

South Ward 13,835      4,500       - 18,335 - - - 5,708 5,708 12,627        

East Ward 19,776      4,500       - 24,276 - - - 7,100 7,100 17,176        

West Ward 14,250      4,500       - 18,750 - - - 10,013 10,013         8,737 

Hopwood Hall Ward 5,050        1,500       - 6,550 - 950 - - 950 5,600 

Armed Forces 10,937      - - 10,937 10,937         - - - 10,937         - 

Projects 75,690      67,300     (30,380) 112,610 4,244 (8,449)      - 43,502 39,297         73,313        

Total 141,558    86,800     (30,380) 197,978 15,181         (7,233)      - 70,323 78,271         119,707      

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

P
age 30



APPENDIX 3 

 

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP YEAR END REVENUE & CAPITAL FUNDS REVIEW 2018/19 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Projects Fund £36,100 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2017/18 

£13,113 
 

The Projects Fund provides a budget to resource larger projects to address local issues/demands to benefit the local 
community and environment across Middleton Township. 
 
This fund was used to support 15 projects during 2018/19 consisting of 13 community projects and 2 environmental 
projects.  The variety of projects funded in 2018/19 included support for Middleton Band with costs associated with 
competing at the National Championships at Cheltenham in September 2018; provision of hand-held metal security 
wands to detect weapons to Middleton Pub Watch to help reduce crime in licensed premises; themed activities at 
Langley Library for local children, establish a monthly jigsaw club and provision of stationery for children and adult 
colouring sessions; Rochdale Hornets Sporting Foundation’s League for Life programme that aims to provide young 
people with the opportunity to obtain Rugby League sports coaching after school; crime prevention equipment for 
GMP’s Middleton Neighbourhood Team; artwork created by a local artist for display in Middleton Library; repair of 
street lighting and pruning of trees in the Middleton Arena area to improve the lighting conditions and public safety; 
refreshments for the Remembrance Sunday service; Santa suit to be worn at the Christmas festival and lantern 
parade on the Langley Estate and during visits to local groups, luncheon clubs and nursing homes; commemoration of 
the 200th anniversary of The Peterloo Massacre with exhibitions, events, performances, workshops and activities 
organised by Touchstones Rochdale that will provide opportunities for the local community to learn about Peterloo 
and the freedom and rights we have today; Middleton Holiday @ Home Fit and Fed 2019 for children and families to 
be organised by Link4Life throughout the summer consisting of a variety of sports, games, pulse raising activities as 
well as arts and crafts themed sessions and support for Middleton in Bloom activities. 
 
An unallocated amount from this fund of £2,490 and committed funds of £3,154 at year end will be carried forward to 
2019/20. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Projects Fund is allocated a base budget of £36,100 in 2019/20 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

Events Fund £35,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2017/18 

£7,430 

The Events Fund provides a budget to resource a variety of community events and activities across Middleton 
Township for the benefit and enjoyment of the local community.  These events have included Holiday at Home Fit and 
Fed 2018 that provided leisure opportunities for children and young people throughout the summer holidays; May Day 
2018 festival to celebrate the bank holiday with traditional Maypole and Morris dancing, performances from local brass 
bands, charity and community stalls and family entertainment; Middfest 2018 family friendly summer community event 
with attractions/activities to bring together local people from across Middleton and provisions for the service on 
Remembrance Sunday. 
 
An unallocated amount from this fund of £2,430 and committed funds of £2,412 will be carried forward to 2019/20. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Events Fund has a base budget of £35,000 in 2019/20. 

P
age 31



 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

North Ward £5,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2017/18 

£3,976 

Each Middleton Township Ward received £5,000 (except Hopwood Hall Ward pro rata £1,700) to allocate to smaller 
projects that would enable activities to take place to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local 
community and environment.  This fund has been useful in providing a budget for dealing with issues that 
necessitated a quick response with Ward Councillors identifying projects and approval being sought from the 
Middleton Township Chair and Vice Chair. 
 
These funds were used to support a variety of projects during 2018/19: 
 
North Ward - 4 projects were supported.  The projects awarded funds were a bingo starter kit for Stanycliffe 
Community Centre Luncheon Club; replacement toys for Joker’s Parent & Toddler Group; contribution towards an 
investigation into the signalising of Greengate and Mainway East Junction and support the enhancement of the 
existing small ponds/bog garden in Truffet Park with plants and floral features to reflect the swamp-like climate and 
environment of the area when Dippy, the famous Diplodocus skeleton from the National History Museum, was alive to 
coincide with the national tour organised by the Natural History Museum. 
Unallocated funds of £6,771 and committed funds of £110 at year end will be carried forward to 2019/20. 
 
South Ward - 3 projects were supported.  The projects awarded funds were the restoration of the war memorial 
proposed by Alkrington & Providence United Reformed Church involving lifting of the base stones to stabilise the 
foundations, replacement of the original mortar beds and re-point the joints; contribution towards an investigation into 
the signalising of Greengate and Mainway East Junction and support the enhancement of the existing small 
ponds/bog garden in Truffet Park with plants and floral features to reflect the swamp-like climate and environment of 
the area when Dippy, the famous Diplodocus skeleton from the National History Museum, was alive to coincide with 
the national tour organised by the Natural History Museum. 
Unallocated funds of £12,839 at year end will be carried forward to 2019/20. 
 
East Ward - 5 projects were supported.  The projects awarded funds were Read and Feed 2018 delivered by Library 
Services during the summer holidays at Junction Library; contribution towards an investigation into the signalising of 
Greengate and Mainway East Junction; installation of a knee rail at Tonge Field to prevent illegal access by travellers 
and off road vehicles; support the enhancement of the existing small ponds/bog garden in Truffet Park with plants and 
floral features to reflect the swamp-like climate and environment of the area when Dippy, the famous Diplodocus 
skeleton from the National History Museum, was alive to coincide with the national tour organised by the Natural 
History Museum and Fit, Read & Feed 2019 at Junction Library that aims to improve the physical, mental health and 
wellbeing of local children and increase the number of 5-11 year olds accessing local library services. 
Unallocated funds of £6,250 and committed funds of £3,500 at year end will be carried forward to 2019/20. 
 

South Ward £5,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2017/18 

£11,259 

East Ward £5,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2017/18 

£8,248 

P
age 32



 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

West Ward £5,000 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2017/18 

£1,000 

West Ward - 3 projects were supported.  The projects awarded funds were contribution towards an investigation into 
the signalising of Greengate and Mainway East Junction; support the enhancement of the existing small ponds/bog 
garden in Truffet Park with plants and floral features to reflect the swamp-like climate and environment of the area 
when Dippy, the famous Diplodocus skeleton from the National History Museum, was alive to coincide with the 
national tour organised by the Natural History Museum and Fit, Read & Feed 2019 at Langley Library that aims to 
improve the physical, mental health and wellbeing of local children and increase the number of 5-11 year olds 
accessing local library services. 
Unallocated funds of £1,175 and committed funds of £3,500 at year end will be carried forward to 2019/20. 
 
Hopwood Hall Ward - 2 projects was supported.  The projects awarded funds were a contribution towards an 
investigation into the signalising of Greengate and Mainway East Junction and support the enhancement of the 
existing small ponds/bog garden in Truffet Park with plants and floral features to reflect the swamp-like climate and 
environment of the area when Dippy, the famous Diplodocus skeleton from the National History Museum, was alive to 
coincide with the national tour organised by the Natural History Museum. 
Unallocated funds of £3,508 at year end will be carried forward to 2019/20. 
 

Hopwood Hall 
Ward 

£1,700 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2017/18 

£3,028 

Township Officers recommend each Ward Fund is allocated a base budget of £5,000 (except Hopwood Hall receives pro rata budget of £1,700) in 
2019/20. 

P
age 33



 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Capital Fund £67,300 
Base Budget 

 
£75,690 

b/f 2017/18 
 

£30,380 
Budget 

Reduction 

The Capital Fund has been used to deliver a range of projects that benefit the Township’s community and 
environment, and realise the Township priorities in 2018/19.  Projects were submitted from Councillors, Council 
Officers and the local community.  Cabinet on 25 September 2018 approved a budget reduction of £30,380. 
 
This fund was used to support 9 projects during 2018/19 consisting of 1 community projects and 8 
environmental/highways projects.  The variety of projects funded in 2018/19 included the introduction of waiting 
restrictions on Evesham Road and Walsingham Avenue; festive features on lighting columns on Long Street and 
Middleton Gardens to enhance the festive display in Middleton Town Centre; drainage works on the football pitches at 
Limefields Leisure Park; improve the access and surface of the footway by the pedestrian crossing on Limetrees 
Road going into Middleton Town Centre; contribution towards the First World War Plaque for Middleton Memorial 
Gardens; Alkrington Green planting scheme involving the enhancement of a neglected area of land off Manchester 
New Road with mixed wild geraniums and roses; installation of a guardrail along the length of Manor Road outside 
Alkrington Primary School and construct a dropped crossing to formalise a crossing point; improve Middleton floral 
displays and landscapes managed by Environmental Management Services involving refining existing shrub beds and 
flower beds in Jubilee Park, addition planting on the four Town Centre roundabouts, enhance the shrub bed in 
Middleton Memorial Gardens, replace flowers in Middleton Gardens and provision of plants for Truffet Park 
herbaceous border; and installation of a knee rail fence on Bowness Road and Wood Street to prevent the grass 
verge from being damaged by vehicles. 
 
Unallocated funds of £73,313 and committed funds of £4,244 will be carried forward to 2019/20. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Capital Fund is allocated a base budget of £67,300 in 2019/20 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

North Ward £4,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2017/18 

£2,020 

Each Middleton Township Ward received £4,500 (except Hopwood Hall Ward pro rata £1,500) to allocate to smaller 
capital projects that would enable activities to take place to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the 
local community and environment.  This fund has been useful in providing a budget for dealing with some issues that 
necessitated a quick response with Ward Councillors identifying projects and approval being sought from the 
Middleton Township Chair and Vice Chair. 
 
Funds used to support projects during 2018/19: 
 
North Ward - 2 projects were supported.  Funds were approved to remove an existing grass verge strip on Byron 
Road and replace with bitmac to address the issue of damage from parked vehicles and installation of two 
Manchester type bollards on the Alder Road side of Green Lane to prevent parked vehicles causing an obstruction to 
the disabled access to a property. 
Unallocated funds of £2,254 at year end will be carried forward to 2019/20. 
 

P
age 34



 
 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

South Ward £4,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2017/18 

£13,835 

South Ward – 2 projects were supported.  Funds were approved to introduce limited waiting restrictions on 
Manchester Old Road to ensure provision of parking for shop customers and installation of dropped kerbs on 
Worcester Road junction with Mainway and Moss Lane near the junction of Manchester New Road to enable disabled 
access to Kirkway Shopping Precinct. 
Unallocated funds of £12,627 at year end will be carried forward to 2019/20. 
 
East Ward - 1 project was supported.  Funds were approved for the creation of paths to improve access to Wince 
Brook for the enjoyment and exploration of the local community. 
Unallocated funds of £17,176 at year end will be carried forward to 2019/20. 
 
West Ward - 2 projects were supported.  Funds were approved for the creation of three shrub beds on a grassed area 
of land on Latrigg Crescent to address the problem of young people playing football matches and causing a nuisance 
for residents in close vicinity, and installation of timber knee rail fencing along the grass verge on Windermere Road to 
prevent damage from vehicles. 
Unallocated funds of £8,737 at year end will be carried forward to 2019/20. 
 
Hopwood Hall Ward - 1 project was supported.  Funds were approved for the installation of six Manchester type 
bollards on Sherbourne Road to prevent vehicles illegally driving along the footway and causing a danger to 
pedestrians. 
Unallocated funds of £5,600 at year end will be carried forward to 2019/20. 

East Ward £4,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2017/18 

£19,776 

West Ward £4,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2017/18 

£14,250 

Hopwood Hall 
Ward 

£1,500 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2017/18 

£5,050 

Township Officers recommend each Ward Fund is allocated a base budget of £4,500 (except Hopwood Hall receives pro rata budget of £1,500) in 
2019/20. 

Armed Forces 
Fund 

b/f 2017/18 
£10,937 

Middleton Township received a budget of £20,000 for a four year period in 2014/15 for updating and enhancing 
existing memorials and introducing new memorials to commemorate the centenary of the First World War (1914-18). 
 
Funds were approved to create a plaque depicting a scene from the First World War to be cast in bronze, detail in 
relief, etched and polished to be placed in Middleton Memorial Garden. 
 
Committed funds of £10,937 will be carried forward to 2019/20. 
 

 

P
age 35



APPENDIX 4 
 

 

 

 

  

 

Recipient: Friends of Hopwood Woods Nature Reserve 

Project: Hopwood Woods Nature Reserve Wheelchair Friendly Access 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,400 

 
Hopwood Woods was official designated as a nature reserve in 1996 as it was deemed to 
have a special value as a habitat for wildlife.  This woodland area around the grounds of 
Hopwood Hall has Beech and Sycamore species dominating Hopwood Clough with native 
species of Ash, Oak and Birch and the ancient woodlands of Lords Woods has Turkey Oak 
and common Lime with numerous types of fern on the woodland floor.  A number of ponds 
within the nature reserve contain a variety of aquatic plants and wildlife.  Friends of Hopwood 
Woods Nature Reserve was established to protect the environment of the nature reserve, 
encourage environmental awareness and community spirit whilst working with other 
organisations, groups and individuals in pursuance of these objectives. 
 
Hopwood Woods Nature Reserve’s public path access needed improvement as although it 
met disability access criteria it had proven to be non-user friendly for wheelchair users.  
Friends of Hopwood Woods Nature Reserve with the Countryside Ranger met with Newlands 
Primary School to discuss the potential for a Forest School in Hopwood Clough.  The 
installation of rest points and a firmer path surface was recommended to provide a safer 
route for wheelchair users to access the Forest School and an area of the woods that was 
inaccessible due to gradient.  The improvements to the paths involved extensive areas being  

“We are now having the Newlands School 
accessing the Forest School which is amazing 
and a fantastic opportunity for them to have 
access to outdoor learning” 
Keeley O’Mara 
Chair 
Friends of Hopwood Woods Nature 

Reserve 

Page 36



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

cleared of vegetation by the Green Volunteers before a local contractor could commence re-
grading and creation of the paths, installation of the level plateaus from the entrance to the 
bridge, laying of floor mesh and placement of stones to form the level surface of the paths. 
 
Improved access to Hopwood Woods Nature Reserve will provide the local community with 
opportunities to explore and discover the beauty of the natural environment and nurture 
public involvement and ownership of this special green space. 

Page 37



 

  

“Through past experience and reputation people 
know what a good scheme this is – local children 
were encouraged to join and parents wanted their 
child to be active throughout the summer 
holidays” 
Michelle Krauza, Library Officer - Digital & 
Young People and  
Penny Butterworth (Libraries & Customer 

Services Team Leader) 

 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Library Services 

Project: Fit, Feed and Read at Junction Library and Langley Library 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £2,471 and £1,661 

 
Junction and Langley Libraries’ Fit, Feed and Read was an initiative delivered in partnership 
with Link4Life throughout the school summer holidays aimed principally at children aged 5-11 
in receipt of free school meals who might not otherwise have a meal at lunchtime in the 
school holidays.  The children had an opportunity to read and discuss the books they are 
reading, participate in arts and crafts and get active with outdoor sports sessions.  Link4Life 
promoted the initiative to all local primary schools by attending assemblies with information 
leaflets and registration forms.  Libraries promoted the scheme through the local press and 
on social media.  Local early help services also referred families to the initiative; supporting 
families key workers, social workers, integrated neighbourhood teams and community safety 
teams. 
 

Mischief Makers was the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge for 2018 that aimed to 
get children into libraries to keep up their reading skills and confidence during the long 
holidays.  The Challenge has a different theme each year and children can read any book 
as long as they are borrowed from the library.  Children receive special rewards each time 
they read a book and every child that completes the challenge is awarded a certificate and 

Page 38



 

 

 

  
 

a medal.  The Summer Reading Challenge is open to all primary school aged children and 
is designed for all reading abilities. All local primary schools are contacted and given 
resources to work with their local library to actively promote the National Reading Initiative.  
Every child is given information regarding the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge and 
encouraged to take part. 
 
Celebrating the 80th anniversary of the much loved comic, Beano, Mischief Makers Summer 
Reading Challenge provided each child who signed up with their own map of Beanotown to 
help Dennis, Gnasher and friends to find mysterious buried treasure.  By reading and visiting 
the library, children received stickers to discover where the treasure is hiding plus a medal 
and a certificate when they read any six books over the summer holidays.  Mischief Makers 
had a dedicated website for children taking part in the Challenge that allowed them to keep 
track of the books they read, write book reviews, enter competitions and chat to other 
readers. 
 
Children got up to all sorts of mischief enjoying craft activities and workshops from creating 
Dennis the Menace hair and mask, a Dennis in a box, a Bananaman shooter, Beano skittles, 
designing a cartoon character competition, designing a Fit, Feed and Read logo and a comic 
storyboard workshop.  Entertainment included Storytelling with Can ‘O’ Worms, Skylight 
Circus, John Piper’s Puppets, Craig Bradley the Poet, The Zoo Lab and Cartoon Storyboard 
Creations with Cat Jessop. 
 

Multi-sport coaches delivered the sport sessions utilising space in and around the library and 
Rochdale Supply Agency (RoSA) with Libraries’ staff and young volunteers facilitated the 
Read and Feed sessions.  The Fit, Feed and Read initiative provided the opportunity for young 
people to volunteer and develop new skills that will help them with their college and job 
applications. 

Page 39



  

 

Libraries partnership with Link4Life enabled resources to be optimised and offer a wider 
provision to those children who needed it.  A free meal for those children who might 
encounter difficulty receiving lunch when not in school was facilitated through a link 
established with FareShare (a charity that helps organisations working with people who could 
go hungry by distributing surplus food from the food industry).  A local caterer prepared and 
delivered a variety of sandwiches alongside the food from Fareshare to guarantee each child 
received a lunch and not be solely reliant on the fluctuating quantity of surplus food.  Tesco 
also provided a one-off supply of fresh fruit which was distributed between participating 
libraries and sports locations.  Over 332 meals were offered to the young people who 
attended the Fit, Feed and Read sessions across the borough. 
 
Fit, Feed and Read has attracted young people into the library to experience reading for 
pleasure, inspire their creativity, develop relationships with others and get active.  The 
provision of a free lunch has ensured some consistency for those children who are in receipt 
of free school meals. 

The scheme in 2018 was a success.  Key benefits: 

 Enhanced and supported mission for all children to read widely and for pleasure 

 Encouraged parental engagement and family involvement in reading 

 Helped schools make links with their local library and the wider community 

 Was intrinsically inclusive and contributed to the achievement of ALL pupils, 
including SEN disadvantaged pupils and the most able 

 Prevention of the tendency for children’s reading to dip over the holidays 

 Ensured consistency of the provision of a free lunch for those children in receipt of 
free school meals 

 
Michelle Krauza (Library Officer - Digital & Young People & Libraries) and 

Penny Butterworth (Libraries & Customer Services Team Leader) 

Page 40



 

Recipient: Link4Life 

Project: Middleton Holiday @ Home 2018 

Fund: Events Fund 

Awarded: £15,000 

 
Link4Life hosted a programme of activities aimed at children and young people during the 
summer holidays (from 23 July to 31 August 2018) and this year the programme linked in 
with Fit & Fed, a national campaign lead by the charity StreetGames to combat holiday 
hunger, isolation and inactivity.  Middleton Holiday @ Home was originally conceived as a 
response to a lack of co-ordinated leisure opportunities for children and young people 
during the summer holidays and consequent problems of anti-social behaviour and 
nuisance. 
 
Prior to the summer holidays, local community groups were invited to a meeting to provide 
them with details about Fit & Fed and share ideas about how projects could incorporate food 
within their sessions.  It was also an opportunity for groups to plan when their projects would 
take place so that there was no duplication and the provision could extend throughout the 
summer holidays, allowing children to attend more activities.  A promotional brochure was 
produced to market the programme throughout  
Middleton.  Link4Life made in kind contributions in  
respect of officer time to oversee and develop the  
programme and all administration costs involved,  
the cost of the design of the Middleton Holiday @  
Home brochure and end of summer trip. 
 
Fit & Fed sessions included fun and energetic  
physical activity sessions, a nutritious meal as  
well as arts and crafts.  The activities were free  
for children to attend and took place in each ward  
of Middleton Township.  A total of 11 projects  
were delivered across Middleton with a Fit & Fed  
session running every day with children engaging  
in activities such as netball, drama, circus skills,  
crafts, sports and outdoor adventure.  Also the  
Fit & Fed sessions linked in with Junction and  
Langley Libraries’ Fit, Feed and Read project  
where children were able to participate in the  
Summer Reading Challenge. 

 

  

“The aims of the programme were 
communicated to schools, health services, 
council services, nurseries, community groups, 
etc was to promote it to the families that were in 
the most need of the provision.  On the majority 
of the projects places were taken up quite 
quickly with some reaching full capacity” 
Leigh-anne Carnall 

Programme Manager, Link4Life 

Page 41



  

 

Food was an integral part of this year’s programme with a nutritious meal provided for every 
child who attended a session.  Also children were given the opportunity to prepare and cook 
their meals including picking berries, fruits and herbs from allotments to add to their meals, 
use gas burners and log fires to cook outdoors.  FareShare who distribute surplus food from 
the food industry to charities provided fruit, cereal bars and fruit juices.  Each child who 
attended a session over the summer was given a free water bottle to keep them hydrated 
during the sessions and a free swim pass to be used over the summer at Middleton Arena.  
At the end of the summer holidays two young people were nominated from each project to 
attend a trip to Hollingworth Lake Water Activity Centre to experience sailing, canoeing, raft 
building and kayaking. 
 
A successful programme of activities was delivered engaging many young people and groups 
within the Township during the summer of 2018 to build upon the success of the previous 
year.  Middleton Holiday @ Home made a significant contribution towards increasing sport, 
art, culture and leisure opportunities for children and young people during the summer 
holidays across the Township delivered by Link4Life and other providers. 

Page 42



 

 

  

“…their participation in Middleton in Bloom with 
the litter pick and planting gave a much needed 
boost to the local community.  The children’s 
group painted poppy pebbles for the horse 
which was a feature of the Middleton in Bloom 
display.  Burnside received a Level 3 Advancing 
Award due to the help of the volunteers” 
Joan Aspinall, Centre Manager 

Burnside Community Centre 

 

Recipient: Burnside Community Centre 

Project: Burnside Centre Volunteer Project 

Fund: Projects Fund and Ward Fund 

Awarded: £5,206 

 

Burnside Community Centre is a hub for the benefit of the local neighbourhood and provides 
a quality environment to facilitate a wide range of recreational and educational activities 
across all age groups.  Local people have the opportunity to develop their skills and 
knowledge through the centre’s accredited training, taster sessions, awareness events and 
IT courses.  The centre is a home and a point of contact to various groups and organisations 
all working towards the aim of supporting those on the margins and in need of that first step 
towards better opportunities. 
 
‘Take the First Step’ was a volunteer project launched at Burnside Community Centre in 
2018 with the aim of providing the local community with opportunities to gain experience in 
different working and volunteering environments.  The volunteers achieved accredited 
training and skills to support them into employment and enhance their personal lives.  The 
initial stages of the project were development courses such as Cooking from Scratch and 
THRIVE life coaching sessions to build bonds within the group of volunteers.  Participation in 
the Peer Mentoring and Volunteer course gave the group accredited skills and knowledge 
that they could use in their volunteering role and a  
distance learning Customer Service Level 2 course  
provided some of the volunteers with a qualification  
recognised for employment in the customer service  
sector.  Working in partnership with various agencies,  
Burnside Community Centre supported the volunteers  
in achieving a varied range of qualifications.  Two  
volunteers achieved a Level 2 Sports Leaders Award  
through the programme delivered by Link4Life that  
teaches generic leadership skills through the medium  
of sport.  It is a nationally recognised qualification  
that allows the volunteer to independently lead small  
groups of people in sport and recreational activities  
within community settings.  Acorn Recovery that  
provides a range of recovery services which enable  
individuals and their families to break free of  
addictions, provided training for two volunteers to  
gain Level 2 Counselling.  Other volunteers took 

Page 43



  

 
the opportunity to train with Talk English Rochdale to support people with low levels of 
English to improve their language skills, access services and get more involved in the 
community, and these volunteers now support the Talk English Class at the Burnside 
Community Centre.  One of the volunteers will be moving onto the Access Course at 
Hopwood Hall College with a view to training to be a primary school teacher.  The training 
opportunities have enabled three of the volunteers to gain employment and all the volunteers 
have been able to prepare CVs listing their new qualifications and skills that enhance their 
career prospects. 
 
Burnside Community Centre’s service provision to the community benefited from the 
volunteers’ involvement in their Stay and Play sessions and Time to Talk Café and some of 
the volunteers supported the Summer Play Scheme.  Food Safety/Hygiene and Sports 
Leaders qualifications achieved by the volunteers enabled them to produce health snacks for 
the children attending the Summer Play Scheme and support the Breakfast Club during the 
February Half Term and assisting the Play Worker in delivering team games sessions and 
play activities. 
 
An event was held to celebrate the achievements of the volunteers and showcase their 
progress with awards in recognition of their support for Burnside Community Centre and the 
local community over the 12 months. 

“It has been fabulous to see the participants in this programme not only 
grow so much in confidence but each one has been on their own personal 
journey of development, education and social interaction.  A positive impact 
has been achieved by all but for some this transformation has been a 
massive realisation of previously untapped potential” 
Kate Alderson 

Employment and Training Officer, Riverside 

“The project brought together a fantastic group of people who have worked 
hard with one another and done all kinds of things they might not 
otherwise have done.  There's been lots of fun but also a serious focus on 
getting new skills.  They're a jewel in the crown of Burnside Centre!  I hope 
they stick around for a good long time” 
Canon Phillip Miller 

Chair of Burnside Directors 

Page 44



  

 
Recipient: Groundwork Oldham & Rochdale Trust 

Project: Irkside Community Woodland Improvements 

Fund: Project Fund and Ward Fund 

Awarded: £5,000 

 
Groundwork Oldham & Rochdale Trust is a local environmental charity that aims to build 
people’s skills and improve job prospects, redesign neglected open spaces, help people 
make their own decision about their area, motivate and develop our young people and 
promote greener ways of working and living.  Working with schools, community groups, 
housing associations and local authorities, Groundwork Oldham & Rochdale Trust improve a 
wide range of green spaces to meet the needs of the local community and create beautiful 
havens for wildlife. 
 
Irkside Nature Reserve is woodland connected to Alkrington Woods and features a circular 
route passing woodland, hedgerows, pond, glades and wetland meadow habitats within a 
relatively short walk from the Alkrington Park Road entrance.  Groundwork Oldham & 
Rochdale Trust in partnership with the Friends of Alkrington Woods recruited volunteers 
affiliated to both groups and through an open invite to members of the public with the aim of 
giving opportunities to enhance the local neighbourhood and get active.  Improvements 
undertaken in the nature reserve included the repair of fencing adjacent to the south western 
kissing gate, removal of carpets/moss from the boardwalk and affixing galvanised mesh to  

“Footpaths previously blocked by windblown 
trees have been opened up, glades have been 
cut back and repairs have been made to items 
that will allow visitors to better access the site” 
Adam Holt 
Land Manager 

Groundwork Oldham & Rochdale Trust 

Replacement and repair of fencing at the entrances to Irkside Nature Reserve and along the 

boundary line 

Page 45



  

 
the treads, replacement of timber cross members on the barrier adjacent to the pond, litter 
pick the site, removal of overhanging trees and shrubs encroaching onto the path and 
refurbishment of the sign at the entrance.  Habitat was enhanced with coppicing in the 
woodland glade, creation of a brash pile to attract birds and mammals, and eradication of the 
invasive Himalayan Balsam in the area. 
 
Five participants involved in completing the physical improvements in the nature reserve 
used the opportunity to evidence vocational skills and achieved ABC Level One qualifications 
in Practical Countryside Skills.  Three participants have subsequently gained full time 
employment and one is currently completing a Prince’s Trust course. 
 
Irkside Nature Reserve improvements have been welcomed by the Friends of Alkrington 
Woods and it’s created a more accessible and inviting location for the local community to 
visit and get active. 

Removal of carpets/moss from the boardwalk and affixing galvanised mesh 

Management of the woodland glades and creation of a brash pile 

Page 46



 

 
Recipient: Langley Theatre Workshop 

Project: Youth Theatre 

Fund: Ward Fund 

Awarded: £1,300 

 
Langley Theatre Workshop provides the local community with the opportunity to participate in 
the performing arts and gain knowledge, experience and skills which enable them to 
appreciate and progress in the areas of dance, drama and music.  Weekly workshops and 
outreach provision build confidence and self-esteem as participants are encouraged to 
express themselves creatively without judgement. 
 
The Youth Theatre Group consists of expressive individuals who create dynamic plays and 
drama pieces themed on current issues affecting young people.  Greater Manchester’s youth 
theatres, schools and colleges were given the opportunity to perform at HOME in the 
National Theatre’s Connections Festival which is a celebration of young people, theatre 
making and the important of access to the arts.  Ten new plays are commissioned each year 
by the National Theatre for young people to perform.  Langley Theatre Workshop on 27 
March 2018 performed ‘When They Go Low’ by Natalie Mitchell, a play about everyday 
feminism and the changing face of teenage sexuality in an online world.  Twenty young 
people received drama coaching in all aspects of theatre and experienced giving a 
performance on a prestigious stage to a live audience.  The group’s dedication and 
commitment to the project achieved an outstanding portrayal of the play. 

“The project was a huge highlight of the year 
for me but the best moments are at HOME 
Theatre watching the young people step out 
onto the stage and give such believable and 
heartfelt performances is truly incredible” 
Georgina Jacques 
Chief Executive Officer 

Langley Theatre Workshop 

Page 47



APPENDIX 5

MIDDLETON TOWNSHIP FUNDING STREAMS 2019/20

REVENUE FUNDS 2019/20 = £140,941

OPTION 1 - REVENUE FUNDS

Fund b/f 2018/19 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2019/20
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2019/20

Notes

Projects Fund £5,643 £36,100 £0 £41,743 £3,154 £38,589 Fund to resource larger revenue projects that meet the Township's priorities.  

Base budget of £36,100 with retained budget of £3,154 (see committed column) 

for projects approved pre 2019/20.

Events Fund £4,843 £35,000 £0 £39,843 £23,413 £16,430 Fund for Middleton Township to allocate to events during 2019/20 for the benefit 

of the local community.  Base budget of £35,000.  Events approved at the end of 

the last financial year (see committed column) include May Day Festival 2019 and 

Middfest 2019.

North Ward Fund £6,882 £5,000 £0 £11,882 £111 £11,771 Fund for North Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

South Ward Fund £12,839 £5,000 £0 £17,839 £0 £17,839 Fund for South Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

East Ward Fund £9,750 £5,000 £0 £14,750 £3,500 £11,250 Fund for East Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

West Ward Fund £4,676 £5,000 £0 £9,676 £3,500 £6,176 Fund for West Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

Hopwood Hall 

Ward Fund

£3,508 £1,700 £0 £5,208 £0 £5,208 Fund for Hopwood Hall Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

TOTAL £48,141 £92,800 £0 £140,941

Page 1 of 4

P
age 48



OPTION 2 - REVENUE FUNDS

Fund b/f 2018/19 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2019/20
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2019/20

Notes

Projects Fund £5,643 £46,950 £0 £52,593 £3,154 £49,439 Fund to resource larger revenue projects that meet the Township's priorities.  

Base budget of £46,950 with retained budget of £3,154 (see committed column) 

for projects approved pre 2019/20.

Events Fund £4,843 £35,000 £0 £39,843 £23,413 £16,430 Fund for Middleton Township to allocate to events during 2019/20 for the benefit 

of the local community.  Base budget of £35,000.  Events approved at the end of 

the last financial year (see committed column) include May Day Festival 2019 and 

Middfest 2019.

North Ward Fund £6,882 £2,500 £0 £9,382 £111 £9,271 Fund for North Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

South Ward Fund £12,839 £2,500 £0 £15,339 £0 £15,339 Fund for South Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

East Ward Fund £9,750 £2,500 £0 £12,250 £3,500 £8,750 Fund for East Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

West Ward Fund £4,676 £2,500 £0 £7,176 £3,500 £3,676 Fund for West Middleton Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

Hopwood Hall 

Ward Fund

£3,508 £850 £0 £4,358 £0 £4,358 Fund for Hopwood Hall Ward to allocate to small revenue projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

TOTAL £48,141 £92,800 £0 £140,941

Page 2 of 4

P
age 49



CAPITAL FUNDS 2019/20 = £221,688

OPTION 1 - CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2018/19 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2019/20
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2019/20

Notes

Projects Fund £77,557 £67,300 £0 £144,857 £4,244 £140,613 Fund to resource larger capital projects that meet the Township's  priorities.  Base 

budget of £67,300 with retained budget of £4,244 (see committed column) for 

projects approved pre 2019/20.

Armed Forces 

Fund

£10,937 £0 £0 £10,937 £10,937 £0 Fund for updating and enhancing existing memorials and introducing new 

memorials to commemorate the centenary of the First World War (1914-1918).  

Base budget of £20,000 for a four year period was allocated in 2014/15.

North Ward Fund £2,254 £4,500 £0 £6,754 £0 £6,754 Fund for North Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

South Ward Fund £12,627 £4,500 £0 £17,127 £0 £17,127 Fund for South Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

East Ward Fund £17,176 £4,500 £0 £21,676 £0 £21,676 Fund for East Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

West Ward Fund £8,737 £4,500 £0 £13,237 £0 £13,237 Fund for West Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

Hopwood Hall 

Ward Fund

£5,600 £1,500 £0 £7,100 £0 £7,100 Fund for Hopwood Hall Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

TOTAL £134,888 £86,800 £0 £221,688

Page 3 of 4

P
age 50



OPTION 2 - CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2018/19 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2019/20
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2019/20

Notes

Projects Fund £77,557 £77,050 £0 £154,607 £4,244 £150,363 Fund to resource larger capital projects that meet the Township's  priorities.  Base 

budget of £77,050 with retained budget of £4,244 (see committed column) for 

projects approved pre 2019/20.

Armed Forces 

Fund

£10,937 £0 £0 £10,937 £10,937 £0 Fund for updating and enhancing existing memorials and introducing new 

memorials to commemorate the centenary of the First World War (1914-1918).  

Base budget of £20,000 for a four year period was allocated in 2014/15.

North Ward Fund £2,254 £2,250 £0 £4,504 £0 £4,504 Fund for North Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

South Ward Fund £12,627 £2,250 £0 £14,877 £0 £14,877 Fund for South Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

East Ward Fund £17,176 £2,250 £0 £19,426 £0 £19,426 Fund for East Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

West Ward Fund £8,737 £2,250 £0 £10,987 £0 £10,987 Fund for West Middleton Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

Hopwood Hall 

Ward Fund

£5,600 £750 £0 £6,350 £0 £6,350 Fund for Hopwood Hall Ward to allocate to small capital projects to respond to 

local issues/demands for the benefit of the local community/environment.

TOTAL £134,888 £86,800 £0 £221,688

Page 4 of 4

P
age 51



 

Form MT02 1 

 

 

MMIIDDDDLLEETTOONN  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001199//2200 
 

1. Purpose of the fund 

 

Middleton Township Committee is proud of Middleton’s past and wants to ensure that its future is as rich.  At 
the heart of all the Committee’s decisions is the vision to create a friendly, clean and safe town, with diverse, 
skilled and harmonious communities proud of their heritage and looking towards a prosperous future as part 
of the Manchester City Region. 
 

Middleton Township funds can be used to offer support to organisations and projects that are of direct 
benefit to the community and the environment of Middleton.  Councillors, Council Services, partner 
agencies, third sector organisations and forums/working parties are invited to submit projects on relevant 
application forms for funding from Middleton Township funds. 
 

All projects must show how they will address the Middleton Township priorities of: 
 

 People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be 

healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable 

communities to thrive and develop. 

 Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, 

work and invest. 

 Prosperity – We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create 

the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs. 

 

2. What can be funded 

 

a) Projects aiming to meet Township priorities. 
b) Projects for which there is no other identifiable budget and are within the powers of the Council. 
c) Projects that supplement or enhance current Council service provision. 
d) Improvements to landscapes or public areas, eg providing additional seating, paving, railings, etc. 
e) Restoration of buildings or landscaping as part of a heritage scheme. 
f) Projects that can clearly demonstrate benefit to the local community such as providing bollards, 

fencing, lights, CCTV, etc. 
g) Projects that can be delivered with no additional revenue costs. 
h) Equipment hire or purchase such as IT equipment, sports equipment, arts and crafts materials, etc. 
i) Publicity materials for use in your project and recognise the contribution made by the Township. 
j) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities. 
k) Hiring of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs). 
l) Talented young athletes who reside in Middleton competing at national/international level supported by 

a recognised sporting body. 
 

3. What cannot be funded 

 

a) Projects that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces 
existing services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide. 

b) Projects benefiting individuals. 
c) Improvements to private land or buildings resulting in equity gain, unless there is a demonstrable wider 

community benefit. 
d) Promoting religious or political causes. 
e) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory 

functions. 
f) Support for the general work of charities including fundraising events. 
g) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff. 
h) General running costs, eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc. 
i) Parties/day trips out (local disability group trips may be considered). 
j) Purchase of alcohol. 

APPENDIX 6 

Page 52



 

Form MT02 2 

 

k) Activities already started or purchasing items before funding is awarded. 

l) Purchasing of vehicles. 

m) Purchasing insurance. 
 

4. Terms and conditions 

 

a) The expenditure must be within the powers of the Council. 
b) The project must benefit the Township community or environment and meet at least one of the 

Township priorities. 
c) Grants can only be made to non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank 

account. 
d) All grants must be spent/claimed within six months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be 

made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Middleton Township Devolved Funding 
and Services Sub Committee’s discretion. 

e) The grant must be used for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use 
must be made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Middleton Township Devolved 
Funding and Services Sub Committee’s discretion. 

f) VAT on purchases relating to the project must only be included in the amount requested if it cannot be 
claimed back from HM Revenue and Customs. 

g) Applicants are responsible for ensuring that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), 
regulations (such as health and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place. 

h) Applicants are responsible for applying to Rochdale Council if they intend to hold a public event on 
Council owned land. 

i) Groups applying for a project to work with children, young people or vulnerable adults must have 
policies and procedures in place that explain how these people will be protected and remain safe. 

j) If public liability insurance is required for a community project, it is the responsibility of the group to 
ensure adequate insurance is in place. 

k) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects 
funded by Township Funds. 

l) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are 
not adhered to. 

m) The Council’s approval must be sought for the disposal or transfer of any items acquired with the grant. 
n) Successful applicants must complete and return a Project Evaluation Form and provide copy 

invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as 
detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Middleton Township Office within 
one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return the Project Evaluation Form and 
invoices/receipts will result in restrictions being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for 
funding or reclaiming of the grant monies. 

o) Applicants who seek to be awarded funds from Middleton Township on successive occasions need to 
demonstrate how they have tried to secure funding from other sources. 

p) The Council reserves the right to add/change specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the 
purpose of the grant and/or the activities to be funded. 

 

5. Decision Making Process 

 

a) All projects must be submitted on an application form with supporting documentation. 

b) Application forms are checked by Township Officers to see if the project meets the terms and 

conditions of the fund. 

c) Projects not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application forms will be referred back to 

the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation.  At this point applicants may be 

requested to supply additional information. 

d) Township Officers can use the officer scheme of delegation process for projects for funding of £5,000 

or less on agreement of the Chair and Vice Chair of Middleton Township Committee. 

e) Township Officers will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to Ward Councillors to seek their 

support and submit for decision on confirmation of majority agreement to a project.  Any disputes 

concerning allocation of Ward Funds will be referred to the next Middleton Township Devolved Funding Page 53



 

Form MT02 3 

and Services Sub Committee for decision. 

f) Applicants will be advised of decisions in writing within 15 working days of the Middleton Township 

Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee meeting. 

g) Township Officers will consult with the Chair and Ward Councillors about the future of a project when a 

Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has 

not be re-elected. 

h) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 
 

6. Commissioning Process 

 

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the 

specification and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs. 

b) Proposed schemes/projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant service to ensure 

alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 

maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

c) Any variations in costs or outcomes by either party should be negotiated and agreed between the 

provider and the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee prior to incurring 

any additional costs. 

d) Where the Township wish to vary the specification – the service provider will identify the implications of 

the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations 

with the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee. 

e) Where the service provider may wish to vary the specification – the service provider should submit the 

variations to the Township Office with justification prior to incurring additional costs for consideration by 

the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee.  The Committee may decide 

not to accept the variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if the 

Committee accepts the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township 

Funds. 

f) The service provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the cost 

of the project on the Township Office receiving evidence of the start of the project as agreed.  Stage 

payments may be agreed. 

g) The service provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving 

the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports. 

h) Where a service provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Middleton 

Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub Committee may, after consultation with the service 

provider, withhold funds (or withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service). 

i) Any unapproved additional costs incurred by the service provider must be borne by the service 

provider unless agreed otherwise with the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services Sub 

Committee. 

j) Service providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices for payment. 

Page 54



Report to Middleton Township Committee

Date of Meeting 13th June 2019
Portfolio Councillor Daalat Ali

Deputy Leader and 
Cabinet Member for 
Resources

Report Author Alison James
Public/Private Document Public

Middleton Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2019/2020

Executive Summary

1.   At the first meeting of the municipal year, the Township Committee is 
required to confirm its delegated decision making arrangements for the 
forthcoming year, as detailed at Appendix 1 to this report and to make 
appointments to Township Sub-Committees (including the Chair and Vice 
Chair) and other bodies as detailed at Appendix 2 to the report.

Recommendation

2.1 That approval is given to the Sub-Committee structure of the Middleton   
Township Committee, comprising the Middleton Township Devolved  
Funding and Services Sub-Committee, and the Middleton Township 
Delegated Sub-Committee and to approve the terms of reference for the two 
Sub-Committees, as detailed at Appendix 1 to this report;

 
2.2   That Members are appointed to the Middleton Township Delegated Sub- 

Committee and to the Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Services 
Sub-Committee (including the Chair and Vice Chair); as detailed at Appendix 
2 to this report.

2.3  That Members are appointed to Township Working Groups and to “Other  
Bodies” as detailed at Appendix 2 to this report.

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Council has established and appoints Township Committees that may 
exercise both executive and non-executive powers as set out in the 
Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Constitution, which states 
that: appointments to Township Sub-Committees, Township Working Parties, 

Page 55

Agenda Item 10



Partnership Arrangements and Local Outside Bodies shall be made at the first 
meeting of the appropriate Township Committee in the new Municipal Year’. 

The Sub-Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any matter 
detailed in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is essential to take 
a decision. 

The proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the
undertaking of delegated functions in accordance with statutory and
procedural requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other
Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and to 
respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township.

The Committee has delegated powers to make appointments to a number of 
other bodies as detailed in Appendix 2.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.

The Middleton Township Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub-
Committee currently exercise formal powers, as detailed at Appendix 1, as a 
Sub-Committee for dealing with making grant approvals and decisions on 
devolved budgets and Township Funds and the Middleton Delegated Sub-
Committee can, as and when required, make ’urgent’ issues on behalf of the 
Township Committee and for making grant approvals and decisions on 
devolved budgets and Township Funds.

Alternatives Considered

The Committee could choose not to appoint sub-committees and undertake 
all delegated functions themselves but this may have a detrimental impact on 
the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with urgent items of 
business. The Committee could also, if it chose to do so, adopt alternative 
Sub-Committee arrangements.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no direct financial implications to this report.

Risk and Policy Implications

The Township Committee is requested to confirm its delegation arrangements 
to ensure that decisions are made in accordance with relevant and statutory 
procedural requirements.  Not to appoint to the Sub-Committee and the 
working groups might limit member involvement in key initiatives for the 
Township.

6.

Page 56



Consultation

7. Not required.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers 
associated with this report.

For Further Information Contact: Alison James – Governance and 
Committee Services
alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924711

Page 57

mailto:alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Middleton Devolved Funding and Services Sub-Committee

To consider and determine the use and allocation of funds devolved to the 
Middleton Township Committee, following appropriate local consultation i.e.

a. Middleton Township Fund
b. Middleton Township Capital Allocation
c. Voluntary Sector Grants (where devolved to Township) i.e. Middleton 

Community Centres;
d. Future devolved funding where referred to it by Middleton Township 

Committee
- To ensure that all requirements and restrictions place on any devolved 

funding are met, or are capable of being met, before any decisions are made;
- To refer any matter to the Middleton Township Committee for a decision 

where the Sub-Committee considers it appropriate;
- To review external funding opportunities and monitor the impact of secured 

external funding, such as Lottery or other external agencies;
- To liaise with the other Middleton Township sub-groups and other groups to 

help harmonise the impact of available Township funding to meet the 
Middleton Township Plan, regeneration and social inclusion priorities;

- To consider and comment on feedback reports on how previously awarded 
grants have been used;

- To approve and undertake commissions for services/projects linked to the 
implementation of the Middleton Township Plan priorities;

- To implement the corporate devolution strategy;
- To implement devolution in the identified devolved services, i.e. Highways and 

Engineering, Development Control, Environmental Management (part), 
Community Centres and Libraries;

- ensure service plans reflect Middleton needs in respect of devolved services;
- To ensure influence is brought to bear on the preparation of service plans to 

better fit Middleton’s needs in respect of the influenced services i.e. Schools, 
Child Care, Learners and Young People, Adult Care, Planning and 
Regulation, Bereavement Services, Waste and Recycling, Regeneration, 
Leisure Trust, Strategic Housing, Revenues and Benefits and Customer 
Services.

- To approve  all proposals made by the identified sub-groups, including any 
commissioning or plans to move resources, or extra funding implications, 
linked to any aspect of the implementation of the Middleton Township Plan;  

- To monitor the implementation of the rest of the Middleton Township Plan via 
the sub-groups of the township;

- To compile future versions of the Middleton Township Plan for approval by the 
Middleton Township Committee.

Middleton Township Delegated Sub-Committee

The Sub-Committee currently exercises a small range of formal powers 
derived from the Scheme of Delegation as an 'urgency' Committee for the 
Township Committee.  

Page 58



Appendix 2

Members are asked to consider appointments to the following Sub-Committees and 
to appoint Chairs and Vice Chairs for the 2019/2020 Municipal Year. 

Middleton Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub-Committee

All Members of the Township Committee were appointed in 2018/2019.

Councillor Donna Williams – Chair
Councillor Smith – Vice-Chair

Middleton Township Delegated Sub-Committee 

This Sub-Committee was not appointed in 2018/19 and the matters and functions were 
delegated to the Middleton Devolved Funding and Devolved Services Sub-Committee 
or the Chair and Vice Chair of the Township Committee as necessary.

The Township Committee is asked (if required) to appoint substitute Members to the 
Township’s Sub-Committees.

Substitute Members

The options available to the Township Committee for substitution arrangements for 
Members of Township Committees comprise: -

(a) An absent Member may only call for a substitute Member from the same  
political group
(b) Where appointments are made on a Ward basis, to allow for a Ward 
substitute from any political group to be identified by the absent Member
(c) To allow for a substitute Member from any political group to be identified 
by the absent Member.

The Township Committee is asked to indicate its determined substitution 
arrangements when appointing Sub-Committee memberships.

In any event, the number of substitute Members appointed by a political group to a 
Sub-Committee cannot exceed the number of substantive Members appointed, up to 
a maximum of three.

Page 59



Township Working Groups

Middleton Township Environment and Culture Forum

All Middleton Township Committee Members were appointed in 2018/19.

Councillor Donna Williams (Chair)

Middleton Regeneration and Transport Working Party

All Middleton Township Committee Members were appointed in 2018/19.

Councillor Donna Williams (Chair)

Other Bodies

Langley Estate Strategy Group

In 2018/19, Councillor Smith was appointed and the Substitute Member was Councillor 
Burke

Middleton Town Centre Management Company and Middleton Market Company: 

Councillors Donna Williams, Nolan and West were appointed in 2018/19 (Please note 
only two appointments are required for 2019/20)

Brentwood Day Centre – Management Committee 

Councillor Donna Williams was appointed in 2018/19

Highways Champion 

Councillor West was appointed in 2018/19

Township Planning Panel

Councillors Smith, Robinson, Dale, Boriss, Nolan and West were appointed in 2018/19

Page 60


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - Middleton Township Committee
	7 Neighbourhood Planning – Designation of the Proposed Thornham St. John's Neighbourhood Area and Forum
	8 Objections to Traffic Regulation Order - Evesham Road, Walsingham Avenue, Tenbury Drive and Hanley Close, Middleton
	9 Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 1 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 2 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 3 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 4 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 5 - Middleton Township Funds Review
	Appendix 6 - Middleton Township Funds Review

	10 Middleton Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2019-2020

